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Celebrating Our Golden Jubilee

Thanks to your encouraging patronage, OYO is celebrating the 50th
anniversary of its foundation, on May 2, 2007. We will take this
opportunity to reflect on our history and to re-launch ourselves
towards further development in the future. We appreciate your 
continued patronage and understanding of our businesses.
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Business Philosophy

We, at OYO Corporation, believe that our corporate duty is to play an
important role in preserving a safe society and the security of 
life through the provision of our cultivated and creative technologies.

The Creation of Safety and Assurance

The needs of society in the 21st century are dramatically changing along with the
trends of the era towards a broader diversification. 

We are now living in an era that requires us to strive for “development of a sus-
tainable society” constantly in harmony with the natural environment for no other
reason than for the people living on this borderless “irreplaceable earth.”

Our technology and skills should acquire the engineering and consulting fore-
sight necessary to form a society in symbiosis with the environment.  To contribute
to society as a company, we must also be able to create new values beneficial to soci-
ety.

By providing society with our cultivated and creative technologies to date, OYO
believes that this to be its societal duty in preserving a safe society and the security
of life. 
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¥24,445
751

1,376
721

¥   15.0
61.3

¥61,308
53,493

Financial Highlights

(Millions of Yen)

2006

¥23,977
640

1,032
497

¥   10.0
59.5

¥61,411
53,818

2005 2006

(Thousands of
U.S. Dollars*)

Non-consolidated Financial Highlights
For the Year:

Net sales
Operating income
Income before income taxes
Net income
Cash dividends per share (Yen, U.S. Dollar)
Dividend payout ratio (%)

At Year-End:
Total assets
Net assets

$205,215
6,303

11,554
6,052

$      0.12
61.3

$514,678
449,068

* The U.S. Dollar amounts in this annual report are translated from Japanese Yen, for convenience only, at the
rate of ¥119.12 = U.S. $1, the approximate rate of exchange on December 31, 2006.

1

¥39,431
1,706
2,737
1,456

¥68,193
55,978

(Millions of Yen)

2006

¥43,344
1,190
2,421

970

¥65,859
53,559

2005 2006

(Thousands of
U.S. Dollars*)

Consolidated Financial Highlights
For the Year:

Net sales
Operating income
Income before income taxes
Net income

At Year-End:
Total assets
Net assets
(2005 Total shareholders’ equity)

$331,020
14,321
22,974
12,220

$572,473
469,921

OYO Corporation
Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006
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To Our Shareholders

We are pleased to present our annual report on performance in the fiscal year ended
in December 2006 (January 1, 2006 – December 31, 2006) for your kind perusal.  

This year, we will be celebrating the Golden Jubilee of our foundation. Hence, it
is a very important year for us as we take our first steps towards our centennial
anniversary based on our new medium-term business plan.

The framework of the new medium-term business plan calls for the OYO Group
to become an even stronger corporate group.  As one of the means for reinforcing the
management of our Group, OYO decided at the board of directors meeting following
the general meeting of shareholders on March 28 to appoint me (Moriyuki Taya, for-
merly President) to Chairman and Group CEO, Vice President Kiyoshi Mamiya to
President and COO, and Vice President Naobumi Daibo to Deputy President and
CFO.

OYO has also decided to provide an additional commemorative dividend to our
shareholders on this special occasion to show our gratitude to your valued patronage.

We thank you for your understanding in long-term perspective and continued
support to OYO businesses.

March 2007

Moriyuki Taya, Chairman & CEO

Moriyuki Taya, 
Chairman & CEO 

Kiyoshi Mamiya, 
President & COO

Naobumi Daibo, 
Deputy President & CFO
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4th Consecutive Year of Increases in Profits

Overview of Business Year Performance

Consolidated Performance of the Group

This business year, our net sales fell 9.0% year-on-year (hereafter, the same) to
39,431 million yen as a result of OYO Geospace, our U.S. consolidated subsidiary,
being reclassified as an affiliate under the equity method.  However, both our
domestic and overseas consolidated subsidiaries had strong years and the OYO
Group surpassed our initial profit forecasts.

As for profit and loss, NS Environmental
Science Consultant Corporation, which has
performed strongly in the asbestos related
sector, has realized dramatic increases in
profit and these have driven the surveying
business.  Additionally, the equipment busi-
ness performed well due to strong energy and
resource markets centering on Asia and the
Middle East.  As a result, major increases
were realized in operating income, which
rose 43.4% to 1,706 million yen, marking the
fourth consecutive year with an increase in
profits.  The OYO Group also posted a dra-
matic increase in net income of 50.0% to
1,456 million yen in part due to the capital
gains from the sale of shares accompanying
the spin off of OYO RMS Corporation.

Non-Consolidated Performance of OYO Corporation

On a non-consolidated basis, OYO to face a severe environment due to the continu-
ing decline in construction investment by the government. But despite this, orders
received grew 1.2% to record sales of 24,160 million yen.  Despite net sales falling
below initial expectations, an increase of 2.0% was reached for a total of 24,445 mil-
lion yen.

In regard to profitability, cost of sales, and selling, general and administrative
expenses dropped 2.3% due to the effects of cost cutting measures and this led to an
increase in operating income of 17.4% for a
total of 751 million yen.  And there was a
dramatic increase in net profit of 45.0% this
year to 721 million yen because of the capital
gains from the sale of shares in the company
spin off described in the section on consoli-
dated performance.

Sales by Business Segment

Geo-engineering
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Measuring
instrument　
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Overview and Issues of the Previous Medium-term Business Plan

The basic foci of the previous medium-term business plan that ended in fiscal 2006
were “Reinforcing our revenue-generating ability” and “Creating an OYO for the
new era.”

The steps taken to reinforce our revenue-generating ability included activating
our human resources and liquidating unprofitable divisions.  These efforts enabled
the OYO Group to post 1.5 billion yen or more in consolidated operating income in
fiscal 2006, our final target for the business plan.  The Group is convinced that we
are steadfastly reinforcing the revenue generating ability of the Group.

As for creating an OYO for the new era, specific measures related to entering new
businesses were launched including entering the security business and preparing to
enter the planning and assessment areas.

We are convinced that the issues we now face are “Securing growth potential as a
group by expanding market share in existing markets and entering new areas” and
“Reinforcing our group management strength by effectively utilizing the manage-
ment resources within our group.”

The Corporate Image the OYO Group is Striving Towards

The OYO Group examined and contemplated the corporate image it wanted to pur-
sue in establishing the new medium-term business plan and selected “A comprehen-
sive yet specialized corporate group engaged in geo-engineering services.”

In other words, the OYO Group is aiming to become a comprehensive corporate
group that provides optimal solutions for diverse needs by laterally integrating tech-
nologies across broad areas related to geo-engineering such as soil, nature, weather,
environmental and disaster prevention areas.  Furthermore, each Group company as

New Medium-term Business Plan Targets: 
Secure Growth Potential and Reinforce Group Management

Medium-term Business Plan
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specialist firms will further refine our technologies that are highly valued, primarily
in the construction industry, so that we can demonstrate our high degree of special-
ization and proprietary technology development prowess regarding elemental tech-
nologies.  OYO will also appropriately process the knowledge gained and the latest
research data to broadly implement enhanced information services, and to also
strive to ensure un-biased and fair assessments of projects and measures.

Basic Policy and Basic Strategy

The new medium-term business plan for fiscal 2007-09 contains two elements.
The first is the “Formation of a comprehensive, integrated group” and the second
is to “Specialize the respective group companies and clarify their specialization.”
These two basic policies will be promoted through a management approach in
which safety, prudence and a spirit of challenge are well balanced.

The first basic strategy is the development and expansion of the private market.
We will develop the private market through a collaboration of all of our Group
firms centering on the soil contamination and purification market.  The second
basic strategy is the preparation of a system for utilizing the intellectual resources
of the OYO Group and the first step in this regard will be commencing the con-
struction of a database.  The third strategy is the enhancement of the Group gover-
nance organization.  Fourth, we will promote activation of research and develop-
ment to promote new product development.  Fifth represents a multi-lateral
approach to expanding business including M&As and alliances.

The OYO Group has established the following consolidated performance tar-
gets for fiscal 2009, the last year of the plan, as numerical targets in the new medi-
um-term business plan.

● Consolidated net sales:                                       44,000 million yen

● Consolidated operating income (profitability)       2,200 million yen (5%)

● Consolidated ordinary income (profitability)         3,000 million yen (7%)
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Disaster Prevention, Environment, and Planning

Reinforcing Each Sectors of Disaster Prevention, 
Environment, and Planning and Assessment

Orders for Forecasting Earthquake Damages Overseas Based on 
High Evaluation

The OYO Group is working to expand our earthquake disaster prevention-related
business including with overseas customers.  This business year, OYO International
Corporation, a member of the OYO Group, directly received an order from the City
of Istanbul, Turkey for a service for forecasting damages from major earthquakes
(contract amount about 1,550 million yen).  This order was a result of past projects
for overseas clientele that OYO International secured through domestic public bod-
ies being highly evaluated for their results.

Accumulating and Applying Disaster Prevention Information through Continual
Studies of Disaster Sites

The OYO Group continues to conduct its own proprietary studies in Japan and over-
seas and to accumulate and apply this disaster prevention information.

OYO Corporation and OYO International Corporation jointly conducted disaster
investigations of the 2006 Central Java Earthquake (M6.3) and the West Java Off-
shore Earthquake (M7.7).

In August 2005, Hurricane Katrina launched a tremendous assault on the South-
ern U.S. and the Group has conducted local disaster investigations and its follow-up
study of recovery conditions.

Follow-up study of disaster recovery conditions concerning Hurricane Katrina
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Bio-purifier BD-955 jointly developed with Miyoshi Oil & Fat Co., Ltd.

Reinforce the Planning and Assessment Sector – A New Business Sector

The OYO Group is presently initiating steps to strength its Planning and Assess-
ment Sector.  One aspect of this is our acquisition of KCS Co., Ltd.  KCS is a plan-
ning-related consultant specialized in the road and urban planning sector and we
will utilize this acquisition to expand our services as a Group in the planning and
assessment sector.  The OYO Group also split up OYO RMS Corporation, an affili-
ate falling under the equity method, into OYO RMS Corporation and RMS Japan
Corporation with the objective of reinforcing our natural disaster risk assessment
sector.  The post split OYO RMS Corporation is focused on advisory services for gen-
eral corporations in the area of risk management.

Expansion of Private Market in Environmental Sector

The OYO Group is committed itself to expanding our business in the private market
in response to the shrinking of investment by the public sector.  This has greatly
contributed to the consolidated performance in this business year due to the buoy-
ant demand for asbestos related services in the private market.  

Real estate activity has taken off and our environmental services are seeing an
expansion in private market services related to soil contamination.  OYO has jointly
developed BD-955, a bio-purifier, with Miyoshi Oil & Fat Co., Ltd. as a means to fur-
ther strengthen our soil contamination purification services.  BD-955 is an environ-
mentally-friendly purifier that uses bacteria found in the earth.  It is an optimal
purifier for a comprehensive soil consultant like OYO, as maximum impact can be
realized with technology firmly rooted in soil.
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Geological Study Equipment in Overseas Markets

Excellent Sales of Geological Study Equipment in 
Overseas Markets

The primary products of the OYO Group’s measuring instrument business are soil
investigation equipment, underground exploration equipment, underground radar
and earthquake monitoring equipment. This business also entered the security
instrument market in 2005 as a means to expand the business.

Sales of Oil Exploration Equipment Grows with Soaring Petroleum Prices

Orders and sales for underground exploration equipment from the mining market
increased this business year due to active resource development in overseas markets
such as North and South Americas, Africa, China and Australia. The sales of min-
ing, oil and gas exploration devices of Geometrics Inc., an OYO Group company, per-
formed particularly well. Geometrics’ GeoEel marine streamer is a successful
product used to image the geologic structure beneath the sea floor to search for oil
and gas as well as to study engineering problems. The GeoEel is unique in that it is
made from non-toxic material that will not pollute the marine environment. The
GeoEel has grown to be a $3 million USD business.

Under sea floor profile

GeoEel on a survey boat



The soaring petroleum prices have
also contributed to a major increase
in sales of the 4D Seismic Explo-
ration System for Oil Field Monitor-
ing manufactured and sold by OYO
Geospace Corporation, an affiliated
company under the equity method.

Promoting the Development of Security Products

The OYO Group launched its security business in 2005 and in the same year,
released Rescue Scan, the life exploration radar. In 2006, the OYO Group developed
the Ultra Sensor Concealed Motion Detector (CMD), a trespasser detection sensor
that uses radar technology, as its product mainstay. With this system, devices are
embedded into the ground surface, walls or the like and the trespassing of people and
cars are detected.

This new product won the highest award in the detection division of ISC West,
the world’s largest exhibition that was held in the U.S., and thus has drawn much
attention.
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Life exploration radar: Rescue Scan

Trespassing monitoring system CMD 1 (concealed motion
detector), an image showing people, cars and the like being
detected by a ground-embedded CMD1.

Wireless antenna

Controller

Image of the 4D Seismic Exploration System for Oil Field Monitors

「CMD１」
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The OYO Group has recently announced the latest generation portable and versatile
Broadband Seismometer. The Cronos120 is a high performance broadband seis-
mometer with background noise levels that are below the US Geological Survey’s
Low Noise Model (LNM) from 120 seconds to 0.1 seconds (vertical component). It
incorporates the latest ultra-low power technology with an average power require-
ment of less than 0.5 watts. Because of its outstanding and reliable features, the
Cronos120 is well suited for local, regional, and teleseismic recording in worldwide
markets.

Successful Application of Disaster Prevention-Related Monitoring Equipments

In the domestic measuring instruments business, the
disaster prevention-related monitor equipment posted
good results. The sensor with communication func-
tion, i-SENSOR is a mainstay product in our disaster
prevention work and was used at many emergency
sites during the heavy rainfall disasters in July 2006.

i-SENSOR utilizes a web system and enables the
monitor results to be viewed on the internet. During
last year’s disasters, the monitor results of the i-SEN-
SOR were displayed on the website of the road man-
ager and it broadly indicated to area citizens the
condition of cracks caused by landslides.

The i-SENSOR landslide disaster remote monitoring system

Earthquake wave form  (acceleration wave form)

Cronos 120 Self Noise
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New Geophysical Tool for Geological, Environmental, Archaeological and Agricultural Survey

Geophysical Survey Systems, Inc., an OYO Group company, launched EMP-400, a
portable, battery operated digital multi-frequency electromagnetic induction sensor
designed for near-surface geophysical investigations.
Applications include archaeological investigations,
shallow geology and soils mapping, subsurface conta-
minant identification and delineation, and subsurface
target detection. The EMP-400 is designed to maxi-
mize ease of use and survey reliability so that it is
expected to open new wider range of applications
beyond traditional geophysical markets.

The system employs electromagnetic techniques
to remotely measure terrain conductivity. Sensor
electronics are controlled via a ruggedized Personal
Digital Assistant (PDA). This communicates with
the EMP-400 via a wireless BluetoothTM communica-
tions interface. The EMP-400 works with an inte-
grated 12-channel WAAS (Wide Area Augmentation
System) GPS (Global Positioning System) or major
external high-resolution GPS systems.
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Cronos 120 with Q330 seismic recording system

Broadband seismometer: Cronos 120

Portable ground conductivity meter: EMP-400
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Corporate Governance

(1) Basic Thinking
The objective of corporate management of OYO is to suffi-
ciently recognize and implement management transparency
and fairness, and continually heighten corporate value
through securing profit and re-growth within the severe
business environment.  OYO has prepared a management
organization and audit system to achieve these objectives
and has positioned enhancing corporate governance that
allows necessary measures to be implemented promptly as
one of the most important themes of management.

(2) Organization Content and Status of Internal Governance  
System

The status of the Management Organization and
other corporate governance systems related to corpo-
rate management decision-making, implementation
and supervision

Board of Directors
The board of directors is comprised of nine directors
(as of March 29, 2007) and there are ordinary quar-

(A)

Business Risk

The following are the primary risks that can have a material
impact on investor decisions within items related to busi-
ness conditions, accounting conditions, etc. entered in the
securities report.

The OYO Group’s policy is to do its utmost to prevent
the occurrence of these based on the recognition that these
risks may materialize and if they do, we intend to take
appropriate measures.

Furthermore, forward-looking statements that appear in
this text are based on judgments of the OYO Group as of the
end of this consolidated fiscal year.

Risk of high dependence on orders from 
the government
The geo-engineering business in Japan comprises around
80% of OYO Group sales and is mainly driven by the
public works market with the primary customers con-
sisting of the national and local governments.  There is
the possibility that decreases in orders resulting from
deterioration in the financial conditions of the national
and local governments and shrinking in public works
volume will impact the business performance of the
OYO Group.

Exchange fluctuation risk
The measuring instrument business comprises about
20% of OYO Group sales and is primarily based in the
North America region.  Since transactions are denomi-
nated in dollars, there is the possibility that currency
fluctuations will impact settlement figures.

Risk of production activities being hindered by disasters
The geo-engineering business and measuring instrument
business of the OYO Group may suffer a decrease in pro-
duction capacity and business performance in the event
that a natural calamity, fire or other unforeseen disaster
occurs and damages or destroys production facilities and
data.

Risk of claims seeking compensation for damages from
violating intellectual property, etc.
The geo-engineering business and measuring instrument
business are businesses using specialized technologies
that may face lawsuits seeking compensation for the
violation of intellectual property rights, etc.

IT system security management risk
The respective companies of the OYO Group process

their work and manage information using IT systems
and there is the possibility of work implementation
being significantly impacted by viruses and malicious
illegal tampering by third parties.

Risks concerning legal regulations
The OYO Group is bound to observe diverse domestic
and overseas laws and regulations including the Com-
mercial Code, Company Law, Securities and Exchange
Law, Tax Code, labor laws, Anti-Monopoly Law and
Construction Business Law, quality standards, environ-
mental standards, accounting standards and such in the
implementation of business.  There is the possibility
that changes in societal conditions, etc. will result in
amendments to these or the establishment of new legal
regulations in the future.

The realization of these may impact the perfor-
mance and financial conditions of the OYO Group.

Risk of price fluctuations for owned assets
The OYO Group owns negotiable securities in a number
of firms with the objective of maintaining transaction
relations over a prolonged period.  There is the possibil-
ity of OYO Group performance and financial conditions
being impacted if there is a major fall in the market
price of the owned negotiable securities or the financial
conditions of said companies deteriorate.

The Accounting Standards on Fixed Asset Impair-
ment (Opinion on Setting Accounting Standards for
Fixed Asset Impairment [Business Accounting Council
August 9, 2002] and Application Policy Accounting
Standard for Fixed Asset Impairment [Accounting Stan-
dards Board of Japan, Corporate Accounting Standard
Application Policy #6, October 31, 2003]) and recorded
an impairment loss.  However, there is the possibility of
an impact on OYO Group performance and financial
conditions if land prices were to suffer a major drop, etc.

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recorded after judging their
potential for recovery after rationally estimating the
future taxable income.  When there are large changes to
the future taxable income estimate or changes to the
system, there is the possibility that the deferred tax
assets will decrease and that the financial condition and
performance of the OYO Group will be impacted.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)
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OYO structure for implementing duties, 
monitoring operations and corporate governance. 

Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

Board of Directors
9 members

Representative Directors

Board of Executive Officers
12 members

Board of Corporate Auditors
3 members 

(2 outside auditors)

Appoint/Dismiss Appoint/Dismiss

Business 
audit

Head Office and Branches

Appoint/Supervise

Compliance Department

Internal Audit Team

Independent Auditors

Group Companies

Appoint/Supervise

Report/Refer matters

Appoint/Dismiss

Business audit

Internal audit

Internal audit

Account audit

terly board of directors meetings along with extraor-
dinary meetings that are held when necessary.  The
board makes decisions on important matters con-
cerning OYO’s management policies and other
important issues and also supervises the implemen-
tation of duties by directors.  Further, the terms of
directors are one year.

Committee of Executive Officers
OYO has introduced the executive officer system
from the perspective of enhancing corporate gover-
nance and the committee of executive officers is
comprised of six directors (of which four are also
executive directors) and fourteen executive officers
(as of March 29, 2007).  As for the implementation of
work, the committee of executive officers meets at
least once a month separate from the board of direc-
tors as a rule.  The committee of executive officers
follows the policies decided by the board of direc-
tors, discusses overall management issues and
reviews the implementation of material work.

Auditors and Independent Auditor
OYO employs a corporate auditor system and has
four auditors of which two are outside auditors (as of
March 29, 2007).  The board of auditors meets once
a month and auditors as a rule attend all board of
directors meetings.  The established system is such
that the auditors monitor the management for the
adequacy and appropriateness of the execution of
duties by directors.

The auditors are presently provided by Misuzu
Audit Corporation (the new name of ChuoAoyama
Pricewaterhouse Coopers as of September 1, 2006).

ChuoAoyama Pricewaterhouse Coopers
(presently, Misuzu), which had been our auditor, was
issued a two-month work suspension penalty by the
Financial Services Agency for July 1, 2006 - August
31, 2006 and was terminated by OYO on July 1
because it lost its qualification as an auditor.

In order to prevent a situation where there is no
auditor, our Board of Auditors selected Masayuki
Maekawa, a CPA, as our temporary auditor to
ensure auditing activities proceeded without break.

In addition, to ensure proper auditing and the con-
tinuation of auditing, OYO additionally appointed
Misuzu as a temporary auditor on September 1 after
completion of its punishment and formed the joint
auditing system of Misuzu and Masayuki Maekawa.

The temporary auditor contract concluded with
the ending of the 50th General Meeting of Share-
holders on March 28, 2007 and Misuzu was once
again appointed our auditor at the general meeting
of shareholders.

Preparation of a Risk Management System
OYO carries out risk management in each division
through RCM and the management status is dis-
cussed at the ordinary management committee
meetings.  OYO Corporate Behavior Guidelines
have also been established as behavior guidelines to
be observed by all employees and directors of the
OYO Group.  A Compliance Manual has also been
prepared that indicates specific behavior guidelines
that comply with these Behavior Guidelines.  OYO
is working so that the Compliance Management is
totally observed internally.

Internal Audits and Status of Auditing by Auditors
Organizational measures include audits conducted
in accordance with an Internal Audit Program to
verify and assess that work is conducted legally and
rationally, and to improve the situation.  This audit
is conducted by the Internal Audit Team (about 5
members) comprised of the Compliance Department
and head office management departments.

Further, OYO regularly exchanges information
and opinions on audit plans and audit results with
auditors, and mutually cooperates so that an auditor
witnesses portions of audits by accountants.

Preparation of the Corporate Governance System
OYO passed the Basic Corporate Governance Policy
at the board of directors meeting on May 12, 2006
and is working to reinforce the risk management
organization, ensure total observance of compliance-
based management and reinforce the management
organization of the OYO Group.

(B)

(C)

(D)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Net Sales Operating Income and
Operating Margin
(Billions of yen, %)

Net Income and
Net Margin
(Billions of yen, %)

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

43.3

39.4

50.4
47.1

43.6

Years ended December

1.2

1.7

0.5

0.8

1.0

1.5

-0.8

0.9
0.7

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Years ended December

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Years ended December

(Billions of yen)

3.7%

1.8%

-1.5%

1.5%

2.2%

1.0%

1.7%

2.7%

4.3%

1.1%

0.5

Net Sales
The OYO Group posted net sales of 39,431 million yen this
consolidated fiscal year, a year-on-year decrease of 9.0% or
3,913 million yen. By segment, the geo-engineering business
posted sales of 30,898 million yen, a 1,379 million yen
increase as a result of growth in the asbestos-related business,
completion of major projects related to earthquake disaster
prevention and the business with Istanbul to forecast damages
from earthquakes.  The measuring instrument business
posted sales of 8,533 million yen, a 5,292 million yen
decrease, due to OYO Geospace unaccounted for.  The net
sales of this subsidiary for the last consolidated fiscal year
totaled 7,045 million yen and when its performance was sub-
tracted from the equation, there was an increase in income as
a result of strong performances by physical exploration
devices, seismometers and underground radars.

As for geographical figures, sales in Japan totaled 32,314
million yen (year-on-year ratio of 105.4%), North American
sales reached 6,100 million yen (55.6%), and in other regions,
sales totaled 1,017 million yen (59.7%).

Gross Profit on Sales
Gross profit on sales totaled 12,719 million yen, an 8.1% year-
on-year decrease of 1,127 million yen. By segment, it increased
232 million yen to 9,555 million yen in the geo-engineering
business.  This was a result of continued cost cutting effects
such as moving manufacturing into the firm, performance
improvements of some subsidiaries and such despite the high
cost rates of the major projects related to earthquake disaster
prevention and sales for the Istanbul project.  The gross profit
on sales decreased 1,359 million yen to 3,164 million yen in
the measuring instruments business because OYO Geospace
unaccounted for.  The gross profit on sales posted by this for-
mer subsidiary last year was 2,205 million yen and with this
deducted the performance posted an increase in profit.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses and 
Operating Income
Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased 1,643
million yen to 11,013 million yen and accounted for 28.0% of
net sales, less than the 29.2% of last year.  This was a result
of cost cutting effects including in personnel costs centered
on OYO and because the 4,255 thousand dollars (456 million
yen) in goodwill write-offs of the consolidated U.S. subsidiary
recorded last year not existing this year.  As a result, operating
income totaled 1,706 million yen and increased 516 million

yen compared to last year and the operating income rose to
4.3% from 2.7% last year.

As for operating income of the segment classified by type
of business, the Survey Business posted operating income of
1,127 million yen (year-on-year ratio 224.7%), while the Mea-
surement Equipment Business profited 532 million yen (the
same 76.7%). 

The operating income in Japan totaled 1,230 million yen
(133.0%), North America totaled 468 million yen (573.5%),
and in other regions, it totaled 9 million yen (5.5%). Although
there was a decrease in income due to OYO Geospace’s depar-
ture from the consolidated group, the operating income
posted an increase in income as the change did not affect the
profits earned.

Other Revenue (Expenses)
The OYO Group posted a total net profit of 1,031 million yen
in Other Revenue for this consolidated fiscal year.

One of the primary factors for this was the overall strong
performance of our affiliated companies and the drastic
increase in investment profit of 351 million yen year-on-year
to 469 million yen related to equity method as a result of
change in our American subsidiary OYO Geospace to an affil-
iated company.

Another substantial factor was the profit of 305 million
yen appropriated in the present consolidated fiscal year from
the sale of affiliated shares accompanying the corporate split
of OYO RMS Corporation, another consolidated subsidiary
(presently, RMS Japan Corporation).  As a result, gain on sale
of investments in and advances to subsidiaries and affiliated
companies increased to 279 million yen. 

Again, the increase in interest and the dividends received
also appropriated the steady surplus in the Other Revenue
(Expenses).  As a result, net income before income taxes
increased 316 million yen to 2,737 million yen.

Other Revenue in the present consolidated fiscal year
shows a decrease in comparison to the last fiscal year’s perfor-
mance (1,231 million) due to the partial sale of shares in OYO
Geospace, which had posted a profit of 908 million yen.

Corporation Taxes (including corporation tax adjustment
amount), Minority Shareholder Income and Net Income
Although the net income before income taxes and other
adjustments increased, there was an impact on the adjust-
ment amount to corporation taxes, etc. and the tax expenses
for this consolidated fiscal year totaled 1,204 million yen, a
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R&D Expenditure Net Income per Share ROE and ROA
(Billions of yen) (Yen) (%)

1.3

1.0

1.6 1.6

1.4

31.9
27.8

49.4

-24.0

20.6

1.8%

2.7%

-1.0%

1.2%

1.2%
1.4%

2.2%

-1.4%

1.6%

0.9%

ROE
ROA

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Years ended December

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Years ended December

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Years ended December

solidated balance sheet for this consolidated fiscal year being
prepared according to these revised regulations.

Cash Flows

The cash and cash equivalents for this consolidated fiscal year
decreased 2,366 million yen (increased 2,159 million yen a
year earlier) for a balance at the end of this year of 16,926 mil-
lion yen, a decrease of 12.3% year-on-year.  This is because
the increase in net income before taxes increasing to 2,737
million yen, an increase of 13.0% year-on-year; and income
from the sale of shares in an affiliated company totaling 857
million yen (not applicable a year earlier) being offset by 2,268
million yen in expenses from acquiring investment securities,
an increase of 53.1% year-on-year; and paid income taxes of
1,655 million yen, an increase of 165.6%.

The cash flow conditions and factors for this consolidated
fiscal year follow.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Cash flow from operating activities this fiscal year saw an
inflow of 538 million yen (outflow of 290 million yen last).
This is partly due to the presence of cash decreasing factors
such as a 881 million yen increase in accounts receivable
(24.1% decrease) and 1,655 million yen in paid taxes (165.6%
increase) offsetting the increase factors of net income before
income taxes of 2,737 million yen (13.0% increase) and depre-
ciation of 790 million yen (decrease of 34.4%).

Cash Flow from Investment Activities
This year’s cash flow from investment activities saw an out-
flow of 2,210 million yen (inflow of 2,538 million yen last
year). This is primarily due to the decrease factors of invest-
ment securities acquisition expenses of 2,268 million yen (an
increase of 53.1%) and fixed asset acquisition expenses of 537
million yen (37.5% decrease) offsetting the increase factors
that include 857 million yen in income from the sale of
shares in an affiliated company under the equity method (not
applicable last year).

Cash Flow from Financing Activities
This year’s cash flow from financing activities posted an out-
flow of 816 million yen (255.7% increase).  The primary rea-
son for this is the 884 million yen in expenses for acquiring
treasury stock, an increase of 21.6%.

year-on-year decrease of 43 million yen.  The minority share-
holder income decreased 126 million yen to 77 million yen
despite the strong performance of subsidiaries due to OYO
Geospace’s change. As a result, the net income increased 486
million yen to 1,456 million yen.

Analysis of Financial Conditions

Asset, Liability and Net Asset Conditions
The total assets at the end of the consolidated fiscal year
increased 2,334 million yen to 68,193 million yen. Current
assets increased 1,065 million yen and fixed assets increased
1,269 million yen. With regard to current assets, this is pri-
marily due to the increase in net sales increasing accounts
receivable for geo-engineering by 554 million yen from last
year to reach 6,170 million yen and the increase in orders
leading uncompleted geo-engineering costs to increase by 431
million yen from last year to 6,686 million yen.  As for fixed
assets, cross shareholdings led to an increase in “investments
in securities” of 1,270 million yen from last year to 8,971 mil-
lion yen.

The total liabilities at the end of the consolidated fiscal
year increased 827 million yen to 12,215 million yen com-
pared to last year.  This is primarily due to uncompleted geo-
engineering receipts increasing 416 million yen to 1,263
million yen.

The net asset total as of the end of the consolidated fiscal
year increased 1,507 million yen to 55,978 million yen com-
pared to the end of last year.  This is primarily due to the reg-
istering of a net income of 1,456 million yen, 532 million yen
increase in treasury stock to 3,207 million yen, and the
increase in minority shareholders’ equity of 178 million yen
to 1,090 million yen.

As a result, the shareholders’ equity ratio was 80.5% and
the net assets per share 1,887.63 yen.

Further, the Accounting Standard for Presentation of Net
Assets in the Balance Sheet (Accounting Standards Board of
Japan [ASBJ] Statement No. 5, Dec. 9, 2005) and Guidance on
Accounting Standard for Presentation of Net Assets in the
Balance Sheet (ASBJ Guidance No. 8, Dec. 9, 2005) were
applied this consolidated fiscal year.  The amount that corre-
lates to the total for the conventional capital section is 54,888
million yen.

The revision to the Regulations Concerning the Termi-
nology, Form and Presentation Methods of Consolidated
Financial Statements resulted in net asset section of the con-
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OYO Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2005 and 2006

¥15,816
2,536

8,500 
12

8,512
(60)

8,452 
6,686
2,543 

353 
1,000

947
38,333

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash in hand and at bank (Note 4)
Marketable securities (Note 5)
Accounts and notes receivable:

Trade
Subsidiaries and affiliates

Less: allowance for bad debts

Costs of uncompleted geo-engineering services
Inventories (Note 6)
Deferred tax assets (Note 10)
Mortgage securities
Other current assets

Total current assets

Investments and Advances:
Investments in securities (Note 5)
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries 
and affiliates (Note 8)

Long-term loans and other investments (Note 16)
Investments in real estate
Less: allowance for bad debts

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Buildings and structures (Note 9)
Machinery and equipment

Less: accumulated depreciation

Land (Notes 7 and 9)

8,971

2,308
3,293

493 
(92)

14,973 

12,728
6,988 

19,716
(12,866)

6,850 
6,699 

13,549

¥16,522
2,812 

7,540 
2 

7,542 
(71)

7,471 
6,255
2,200 

381 
1,000

627
37,268

7,701

2,516 
3,080

515 
(34)

13,778 

12,781 
6,920 

19,701
(12,657)

7,044 
6,678

13,722

$132,771 
21,293

71,360
97

71,457
(505)

70,952
56,128
21,351 
2,963
8,395
7,948 

321,801

75,309

19,376
27,643
4,137 

(772)
125,693

106,850
58,661 

165,511
(108,010)

57,501
56,243

113,744

Intangibles and Deferred Charges
Deferred tax assets (Note 10)
Other

758
580

1,338 
¥68,193

667
424

1,091 
¥65,859

6,365
4,870

11,235
$572,473

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

(Millions of yen)

2006 2006

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

(Note 3)

2005
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¥ 175
10 

2,347
2

2,349
621

1,263
292 
57

2,613 
7,380

19
3,534

—
360

707
215

4,835

— 

16,175 
16,523
28,044
(3,207)

57,535

792
(2,658)

(781)
(2,647)

1,090
55,978

¥68,193

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Short-term bank loans (Note 9)
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 9)
Accounts and notes payable:

Trade
Subsidiaries and an affiliates

Income taxes payable (Note 10)
Advances received on uncompleted 
geo-engineering services

Reserve for accrued bonuses
Reserve for losses on geo-engineering contracts (Note 2 (18))
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term Liabilities:
Long-term debt (Note 9)
Reserve for retirement benefits (Note 11)
Retirement benefits for directors and corporate 

auditors (Note 2 (19))
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 10)
Deferred tax liabilities for revaluation of land

(Notes 7 and 10)
Other long-term liabilities

Total long-term liabilities

Minority Interests in Consolidated Subsidiaries

Net Assets
Shareholders’ Equity:

Common stock:
Authorized: 120,000,000 shares 

at December 31, 2005 and 2006
Issued: 32,082,573 shares 
at December 31, 2005 and 2006

Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings (Note 2 (20))
Treasury stock (Note 12)

Total shareholders’ equity
Revaluation and Transaction Adjustments

Unrealized gains on “Other Securities”
Revaluation losses on land (Note 7)
Adjustment arising from foreign currency financial
statement translation

Total valuation and transaction adjustments

Minority Interests in Consolidated Subsidiaries
Total net assets

¥ 120
13 

2,068
3

2,071 
1,326

847 
233 

—
1,760 
6,370

30
3,727

68
297

712
184 

5,018

912 

16,175 
15,906 
26,990
(2,675)

56,396

958
(2,691)

(1,104)
(2,837)

—
53,559 

¥65,859 

$    1,469
88 

19,704
12

19,716
5,212

10,605 
2,448 

484
21,937 
61,959

157 
29,668

—
3,028 

5,935
1,805

40,593

—

135,784
138,711 
235,423
(26,923)

482,995

6,650
(22,314)

(6,559)
(22,223)

9,149
469,921 

$572,473

(Millions of yen)

2006 2006

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

(Note 3)

2005

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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¥30,898
8,533 

39,431

21,343 
5,369

26,712 
12,719
11,013 
1,706 

305 
(12)
(32)
(14)

6

279
55
40
(31)
—
1

469

—
—
7 

—
(12)
(30)

1,031
2,737

1,100
104

1,204

77
¥ 1,456

OYO Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income
for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006

Net Sales (Note 17):
Geo-engineering services
Instrument sales

Cost of Sales (Note 17):
Geo-engineering services
Instrument sales

Gross profit
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses (Notes 13, 14 and 17):

Operating income

Other Revenue (Expenses):
Interest and dividend income
Interest expenses
Loss on sale/disposal of properties, net
Write-down of investments in securities
Gain on sale of investments in securities
Gain on sale of investments in and advances to 
subsidiaries and an affiliate

Insurance premium income
Property rental income
Property rental costs
Loss on redemption of corporate bonds
Foreign exchange gain (loss)
Equity in earnings of affiliates
Amortization of net retirement benefit obligation
at transition date

Provision for directors’ retirement benefits (Note 2 (19))
Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts
Gain on currency option transaction
Impairment loss on fixed assets
Other, net

Income before Income Taxes
Income Taxes (Note 10):

Current
Deferred

Minority Interest in Earnings of Consolidated Subsidiaries
Net Income

$259,384
71,636

331,020

179,175
45,070 

224,245
106,775 
92,454
14,321 

2,560
(104)
(272)
(122)

53

2,341
468
339
(264)

—
4

3,942

—
—
63
—

(102)
(253)

8,653
22,974

9,234
873

10,107

647
$ 12,220

¥29,519
13,825 
43,344

20,196 
9,302

29,498 
13,846
12,656 
1,190 

244 
(70)
(66)
(33)
19

908
80
19
(43)
(1)

(23)
118

(12)
(50)

9 
73
—
59

1,231
2,421

1,478
(231)

1,247

204
¥ 970

(U.S. dollars)
(Note 3)

Per Share Data (Note 2 (22)):
Net income -Basic

-Diluted
Cash dividends

Weighted Average Number of Shares (thousands)

¥49.41
¥49.01
¥15.0
29,461

$0.41
$0.41
$0.12

29,461

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

(Millions of yen)

2006 2006

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

(Note 3)

2005

¥31.92
¥31.56
¥10.0
29,582
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OYO Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006

¥16,175
—
—

—
—
—
—

—
¥16,175

—
¥16,175

—
—

—
—
—
—
—

—
¥16,175 

Balance at December 31, 2004
Cash dividends
Directors’ bonuses
Net income for the year ended 

December 31, 2005
Acquisition of treasury stocks
Disposal of treasury stocks
Reversal of revaluation of land
Net change in line items other

than shareholders’ equity
Balance at December 31, 2005

Change in presentation of net assets
Balance at January 1, 2006

Cash dividends
Directors’ bonuses
Net income for the year ended 

December 31, 2006
Acquisition of treasury stocks
Disposal of treasury stocks
Reversal of revaluation of land
Other
Net change in line items other

than shareholders’ equity
Balance at December 31, 2006

(Note) During 2006, a former director of OYO Corporation, USA, exercised an option granted over shares in OYO 
Geospace Corporation. US tax relief of ¥617 million arose as a result of exercise. Consistent with the treatment 
adopted by OYO Corporation, USA under US GAAP, this amount has been credited to additional paid-in capital.

¥15,906
—
—

—
—
—
—

—
¥15,906

—
¥15,906

—
—

—
—
—
—

617

—
¥16,523  

¥26,375
(296)
(39)

970
—

(45)
25

—
¥26,990   

—
¥26,990

(294)
(23)

1,456
—

(52)
(33)
—

—
¥28,044

(Millions of yen)

Retained
earnings

Additional
paid-in
capital

Common
stock

Number of
shares of
common

stock

32,082,573
—
—

—
—
—
—

—
32,082,573

—
32,082,573

—
—

—
—
—
—
—

—
32,082,573

¥(2,261)   
—
— 

—
(414)

—
—

—
¥(2,675)

—
¥(2,675)   

— 
—

—
(883)
351

—
—

—
¥(3,207)  

¥56,195   
(296)
(39)

970
(414)
(45)
25

—
¥56,396

—
¥56,396

(294)
(23)

1,456
(883)
299
(33)

617

—
¥57,535

Total
Shareholders’

equity
Treasury

stock

$135,784
—

$135,784
—
—

—
—

—
—
—

—
$135,784

Balance at December 31, 2005
Change in presentation of net assets

Balance at January 1, 2006
Cash dividends
Directors’ bonuses
Net income for the year ended 

December 31, 2006
Acquisition of treasury stocks
Loss on disposal of treasury 

stocks
Reversal of revaluation of land
Other
Net change in line items other

than shareholders’ equity
Balance at December 31, 2006

$133,527
—

$133,527
—
—

—
—

—
—

5,184

—
$138,711

$226,580
—

$226,580
(2,469)

(190)

12,220
—

(439)
(279)

—

—
$235,423

(Thousands of U.S. dollars) (Note 3)

Retained
earnings

Additional
paid-in
capital

Common
stock

Number of
shares of
common

stock

32,082,573
—

32,082,573
—
—

—
—

—
—
—

—
32,082,573

$(22,452)
—

$(22,452)
—
—

—
(7,420)

2,949
—
—

—
$(26,923) 

$473,439
—

$473,439
(2,469)

(190)

12,220
(7,420)

2,510
(279)

5,184

—
$482,995

Total
Shareholders’

equity
Treasury

stock

Shareholders’ equity

Shareholders’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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¥(1,148)
—
—

—
—
—
—

(1,543)
¥(2,691)

—
¥(2,691)

—
—

—
—
—
—
—

33
¥(2,658)  

Balance at December 31, 2004
Cash dividends
Directors’ bonuses
Net income for the year ended 

December 31, 2005
Acquisition of treasury stocks
Disposal of treasury stocks
Reversal of revaluation of land
Net change in line items other

than shareholders’ equity
Balance at December 31, 2005

Change in presentation of net assets
Balance at January 1, 2006

Cash dividends
Directors’ bonuses
Net income for the year ended 

December 31, 2006
Acquisition of treasury stocks
Disposal of treasury stocks
Reversal of revaluation of land
Other
Net change in line items other

than shareholders’ equity
Balance at December 31, 2006

¥(1,176)
—
—

—
—
—
—

72
¥(1,104)

—
¥(1,104)

—
—

—
—
—
—
—

323
¥   (781)  

¥(1,951)   
—
—

—
—
—
—

(886)
¥(2,837)

—
¥(2,837)

—
—

—
—
—
—
—

190
¥(2,647)  

(Millions of yen)

Total
revaluation

and 
translation 

adjustments

Adjustment
arising from 

foreign 
currency 
financial

statement 
translation

Revaluation
gains/(losses)

on land

Unrealized
gains/

(losses) on
“other 

securities”

¥373
—
—

—
—
—
—

585
¥958

—
¥958

—
—

—
—
—
—
—

(166)
¥792

¥    —
—
— 

—
—
—
—

—
¥ —

912
¥   912

—
—

—
—
—
—
—

178
¥1,090

¥54,244   
(296)
(39)

970
(414)
(45)
25

(886)
¥53,559

912
¥54,471

(294)
(23)

1,456
(883)
299
(33)

617

368
¥55,978

Total
net assets

Minority
interests in

consolidated 
subsidiaries

$(22,593)
—

$(22,593)
—
—

—
—

—
—
—

279
$(22,314)

Balance at December 31, 2005
Change in presentation of net assets

Balance at January 1, 2006
Cash dividends
Directors’ bonuses
Net income for the year ended 

December 31, 2006
Acquisition of treasury stocks
Loss on disposal of treasury 

stocks
Reversal of revaluation of land
Other
Net change in line items other

than shareholders’ equity
Balance at December 31, 2006

$(9,266)
—

$(9,266)
—
—

—
—

—
—
—

2,707
$(6,559)

$(23,817)
—

$(23,817)
—
—

—
—

—
—
—

1,594
$(22,223)

(Thousands of U.S. dollars) (Note 3)

Total
revaluation

and 
translation 

adjustments

Adjustment
arising from 

foreign 
currency 
financial

statement 
translation

Revaluation
gains/(losses)

on land

Unrealized
gains/

(losses) on
“other 

securities”

$8,042
—

$8,042
—
—

—
—

—
—
—

(1,392)
$6,650

$    —
7,657

$7,657
—
—

—
—

—
—
—

1,492
$9,149

$449,622
7,657

$457,279
(2,469)

(190)

12,220
(7,420)

2,510
(279)

5,184

3,086
$469,921

Total
net assets

Minority
interests in

consolidated 
subsidiaries

Revaluation and translation adjustments

Revaluation and translation adjustments

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

(Note) During 2006, a former director of OYO Corporation, USA, exercised an option granted over shares in OYO 
Geospace Corporation. US tax relief of ¥617 million arose as a result of exercise. Consistent with the treatment 
adopted by OYO Corporation, USA under US GAAP, this amount has been credited to additional paid-in capital.
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OYO Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006

¥  2,737
790
12
8

(469)
14 
—

— 
(257)

35
(305)

12
(4)
32
(6)

(279)
(881)

274
(279) 
276
249
10

(364)
(30)
315

1,890
315
(12)

(1,655)
538

(1,142)
(4)

(2,268)
—

566
(1,500)
1,500

—
857

269
(14)
—

(537) 
30
—
33

(2,210)

55
(13)

(884)
299

(307)
34

(816)
122

(2,366)
19,292

¥16,926

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Income before income taxes 
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment loss on fixed assets
Amortization of goodwill
Equity in earnings of affiliates
Loss on write-down of investments in securities
Gain on currency option transactions
Loss on sale of investments in overseas consolidated subsidiaries 
and affiliates

Decrease in reserve for retirement benefits
Increase (decrease)  in reserve for accrued bonuses
Interest and dividend income
Interest expenses
Loss (gain) on redemption of corporate bonds 
Loss on sale/disposal of properties
Gain on sale of investments in securities
Gain on sale of investments in and advances to subsidiaries 
and affiliates

Increase in accounts and notes receivable
Increase in advances received on uncompleted geo-engineering 
services

Increase in inventories
Decrease (increase) in other current assets
Increase in accounts and notes payable
Increase in other current liabilities
Increase in costs of uncompleted geo-engineering service
Payment of directors’ bonuses
Other

Subtotal
Interest and dividend income received
Interest expenses paid
Income taxes paid

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Increase in time deposits
Payments for acquisition of marketable securities
Payments for acquisition of investments in securities
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities
Proceeds from sale of investments in securities
Payments for acquisition of mortgage securities
Proceeds from sale of mortgage securities
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary’s shares, net of cash owned by 
that subsidiary (Note 4 (2))

Proceeds from sale of securities of affiliates
Cash inflow arising from acquisition of securities of 
subsidiaries (Note 4 (3))

Payment for sale of securities of subsidiaries
Proceeds from transfer of business
Payments for acquisition of properties
Proceeds from sale of properties
Payments for investments in real estate
Other

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Increase (decrease) in short-term loans 
Increase (decrease) in long-term loans 
Payments for acquisition of treasury stock
Proceeds from sale of treasury stock 
Cash dividends paid
Other

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities 
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

¥  2,421
1,205

—
—

(118)
33 

(73)

44 
(243)
(42)

(244)
70
1

66
(5)

(952)
(1,160)

76
(598) 
(305)
277
310

(948)
(50)
360
125
278
(70)

(623)
(290)

(808)
(4)

(1,481)
1,342 
2,012

(2,000)
2,000

2,566
—

—
—
10

(860)
43

(346) 
64

2,538

(102)
581

(727)
267

(310)
61

(230)
141

2,159
17,133

¥19,292

$  22,974
6,636

102
70

(3,942)
122

—

—
(2,158)

299
(2,560)

104
(34)
262
(53) 

(2,341)
(7,398)

2,304
(2,344)
2,317
2,093

82
(3,058)

(256)
2,648

15,869
2,644
(104)

(13,891)
4,518

(9,593)
(35)

(19,043)
—

4,753
(12,592)
12,592

—
7,200

2,257
(118)

—
(4,514)

259
—

282
(18,552)

461
(115)

(7,420)
2,511

(2,579)
285

(6,857)
1,028

(19,863)
161,952

$142,089

(Millions of yen)

2006 2006

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

(Note 3)

2005



The major affiliates are listed below:
Equity

ownership
Name of company                         percentage        Closing date

OYO Geospace Corporation              20%            September 30

Iris Instruments SAS                           49%            December 31

RMS Japan Corporation                     20%            September 30

Engineering & Risk Services 
Corporation                                      50%               March 31
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OYO Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Certain items presented in the consolidated financial
statements submitted to the directors of Kanto Finance
Bureau in Japan have been reclassified in these accounts for
the convenience of readers outside Japan.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(1) Principles of Consolidation
The Company had 27 majority-owned subsidiaries as at
December 31, 2006 (26 as at December 31, 2005). The con-
solidated financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2006 include the accounts of the Company and its 26
majority-owned subsidiaries (25 for the year ended December
31, 2005) (the “Companies”). The principal subsidiaries,
together with the closing dates of their respective fiscal
years, are listed below.

In August 12, 2005, OYO Corporation U.S.A., a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, sold 25.0% of its
shares in OYO Geospace Corporation on the NASDAQ.
As a result, the status of OYO Geospace Corporation has
changed from being a subsidiary of OYO Corporation to
being an affiliated company of OYO Corporation under
the equity method. OYO Geospace Corporation has been
excluded from the consolidated financial statements of
the Company as of August 12, 2005.

The remaining unconsolidated subsidiary (1 for 2005)
has been excluded from consolidation as its combined
assets, net sales and net income are not significant com-
pared to those of the consolidated financial statements of
the Companies. The investment in this unconsolidated
subsidiary is carried at cost or less. For the consolidation
of the accounts of subsidiaries whose closing dates are not
the same as that of the Company, necessary adjustments
are made on significant intercompany transactions which
took place during the periods between the closing dates
for the fiscal years of respective consolidated subsidiaries
and that of the Company.

Unrealized inter-company profits and losses among  the
Companies are eliminated on consolidation, and the por-
tion thereof attributable to minority interests is charged
to minority interests.

Elimination of investments in consolidated subsidiaries

has been made by the Company to include equity in the
net income (loss) of subsidiaries earned subsequent to the
date of  acquisition. Any difference between the cost of an
investment in a subsidiary and the relevant net equity of
the subsidiary is treated as an asset or a liability and
amortized over a period of five years on a straight-line
basis.
(2) Accounting for Investments in Affiliates
The Company had 16 affiliates (their equity interest owned
by the Company is between 20 percent and 50 percent) (17
for 2005). The equity method is applied to the investments
in 16 affiliates (17 for 2005). The investment in the remain-
ing affiliate is not material for the consolidated financial
statements and is carried at cost or less.

1. Basis of Presenting Consolidated Financial 
Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of
OYO Corporation (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries are
prepared on the basis of accounting principles generally
accepted in Japan, which are different in certain respects as
to application and disclosure requirements from Interna-
tional Financial Reporting Standards, and are compiled
from the consolidated financial statements prepared by the
Company as required by the Securities and Exchange Law
of Japan.

The accounts of overseas consolidated subsidiaries are
based on their accounting records maintained in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles and practices
prevailing in the respective countries.

Name of subsidiary Equity ownership percentage Closing date

OYO Corporation, U.S.A. (1) 100.0%                                 September 30
Geometrics, Inc. (1) (2) 100.0%                                 September 30
Geophysical Survey Systems, Inc. (1) (2) 100.0%                                September 30
Kinemetrics, Inc. (1) (2) 100.0%                                 September 30
Robertson Geologging Ltd.  (1) (3) 95.6%                                 September 30
OYO Resources Management Corporation                                                                                100.0%                                September 30
Tohoku Boring Co., Ltd.                                                                                                                100.0%                                 September 30
NS Environmental Science Consultant Corporation                                                                    68.6%                                 September 30
Ocean Engineering Corporation                                                                                                   100.0%                                 September 30
KOEI Consultant Co., Ltd.                                                                                                                91.5%                                 September 30
OYO Seismic Instrumentation Corporation                                                                                100.0%                                 September 30
OYO International Corporation                                                                                                     100.0%                                 September 30
OYO Geo-Monitoring Service Corporation                                                                             100.0%                                 September 30
Nankyu Geo Technics Corporation 59.3%                                 September 30
KCS Co.LTD 90.0%                                 September 30
OYO RMS Corporation 80.0%                                 September 30

Note: there are 10 other consolidated subsidiaries

(1) Overseas Subsidiary
(2) A wholly-owned subsidiary of OYO Corporation, U.S.A.
(3) A 95.6% owned subsidiary of OYO Corporation, U.S.A.
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(3) Translation of Foreign Currency  
Revenue and expense items arising from transactions
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Japan-
ese yen, in general, at the rates effective at the respective
transaction dates.

Foreign currencies and receivables and payables denomi-
nated in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese yen
at the current exchange rate prevailing at the respective bal-
ance sheet dates and the resulting translation gain or loss is
included in determination of net income for the year.

In translating the financial statements of subsidiaries or
affiliates stated in foreign currencies into yen, for purposes of
consolidation with the Company or for application of the
equity method, all assets and liabilities are translated at clos-
ing exchange rates, while capital stock and retained earnings
are translated at historical exchange rates. All revenue and
expense items for the year are translated at average exchange
rates. 

The net difference arising from the translation of the for-
eign currency financial statements is shown as “Adjustment
arising from foreign currency financial statement transla-
tion” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
(4) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of
cash flows are composed of cash in hand, bank deposits
withdrawable on demand and short-term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less and which rep-
resent a minor risk of fluctuation in value.
(5) Sales Recognition of Geo-engineering Services
The Company’s primary business is to engage in geo-
engineering services. The geo-engineering services of the
Company, except for certain large-scale and long-term 
contracts, are accounted for using the “completed contract
method” under which the net sales and the related cost of
sales for the completed contracts are recognized when the
services are completed. The revenue for certain large-scale
and long-term geo-engineering service contracts whose term
is over one year and whose contract amount is ¥100 million
and over, is accounted for by the “percentage-of-completion
method.” The accumulated cost of uncompleted services is
shown as “Costs of uncompleted geo-engineering services”
and the related advances received are shown as “Advances
received on uncompleted geo-engineering services” in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
(6) Costs of Uncompleted Geo-engineering Services
“Costs of uncompleted geo-engineering services” are stated
at cost on an individual project basis, cost being determined
using the individual identified cost method together with an
allocation of appropriate production overheads.
(7) Inventories
Finished products, raw materials, and work-in-process of the
Company are stated at cost, cost being determined by the
average method, while those of the principal subsidiaries are
stated at the lower of cost or market value, cost being deter-
mined by the first-in-first-out method. 

When the net realizable value of certain items of inven-
tory of the Company is substantially less than the carrying
value (cost), and the decline in value is not expected to be
recovered in the near future, appropriate write-downs are
recorded on such items. 
(8) Valuation of Securities
“Other Securities” (with market quotations) are stated at
market value determined using the closing market price at
the balance sheet date. Unrealized gains/losses on valuation
are included in Net Assets. The cost of securities sold is
determined by the moving average method.

“Other Securities” (without market quotations) are stated
at cost less provision for impairment where appropriate.
Cost is determined by the moving average method.

(9) Derivatives
Derivatives are stated at fair market value. Changes in their
market value are recorded in results for the year. 
(10) Property, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation of buildings (excluding leasehold improve-
ments and auxiliary facilities attached to buildings) held by
the Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries is
computed using the straight-line method, and depreciation
for the other property and equipment held by the Company
and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries is computed
using the declining-balance method, at rates based upon the
estimated useful lives of assets which are prescribed by
Japanese income tax laws. The range of useful lives is princi-
pally from 2 to 50 years for buildings and structures, and 2
to 15 years for machinery and equipment. 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment held by
overseas consolidated subsidiaries is mainly computed
using the straight-line method.

The cost of property and equipment retired or otherwise
disposed of, and accumulated depreciation in respect
thereof, is eliminated from the related accounts, and the
resulting gain or loss is reflected in income for the period.

Normal repairs and maintenance costs, including minor
renewals and improvements, are charged to income as
incurred.
(11) Amortization of Intangible Assets
Effective from the year ended December 31, 2003, The
Company’s U.S. subsidiaries have adopted SFAS No. 142
“Goodwill and other intangible assets” with respect to
goodwill. Under the new standard, goodwill with an indefi-
nite useful life is no longer amortized but instead is tested
for impairment, at minimum on an annual basis.

Other intangible fixed assets are amortized using the
straight-line method over a useful life of five years.
(12) Accounting for Finance Leases
Finance leases which do not transfer the ownership of the
leased assets to the Companies at the end of the lease term
are accounted for using the method similar to that applica-
ble to ordinary operating leases.
(13) Income Taxes
The income taxes of the Company and its domestic 
subsidiaries consist of corporate income taxes, local in-
habitants’ taxes and enterprise taxes.

The Company and its subsidiaries adopt the deferred tax
accounting method. Deferred taxes are determined using
the asset and liability approach, whereby deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognized in respect of temporary differ-
ences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and
those as reported in the financial statements.
(14) Provision for Doubtful Accounts Receivable
The Company and domestic consolidated subsidiaries 
provide for doubtful accounts. The amount provided is
determined by applying a percentage based on past actual
experience of bad debt loss to the balance of total receiv-
ables, plus a provision for specific amounts deemed 
necessary to cover potential losses on an individual 
account basis. Overseas consolidated subsidiaries provide
for the amounts deemed necessary to cover potential losses
on an individual account basis. 
(15) Recognition of Accrued Expenses
Accrued bonuses to employees are provided based on the
amount estimated to be payable by the Company and its
domestic consolidated subsidiaries. Overseas consolidated
subsidiaries do not record any accrued bonuses since these
entities do not have bonus payment programs.
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ulations on retirement benefits for directors and corporate
auditors in preparation for paying such benefits to retiring
directors and corporate auditors. However, the company
abolished this director and corporate auditor retirement 
benefits system through a decision made at its annual share-
holders’ meeting held on March 29, 2006. Accordingly, no
further provisions have been made effective from the con-
solidated fiscal year under review. 

Due to this abolition, ¥4 million ($35 thousand) was 
purposefully used from the balance (¥71 million ($597 
thousand)) of the allowance for retirement benefits for 
directors and corporate auditors as of March 29, 2006. The
remaining balance of ¥66 million ($562 thousand) was 
transferred to “Other long-term liabilities.”
(20) Appropriation of Retained Earnings
Under Japanese Corporate Law and the Articles of Incorpo-
ration of the Company, the plan for appropriation of
retained earnings (including cash dividend payments) 
proposed by the Board of Directors should be approved 
by the shareholders’ meeting, which must be held within
three months of the end of each financial year. The appro-
priation of retained earnings reflected in the accompanying
consolidated statements of net assets represents the results
of such appropriations which are applicable to the immedi-
ately preceding financial year but which were approved by
the shareholders’ meeting held during the current year.

Dividends are paid to shareholders on the shareholders’
register at the end of each financial year.
(21) Computer Software
In the accompanying Balance Sheets, software costs are clas-
sified in a software account, included within “Intangibles
and Deferred Charges- Other.” These costs are amortized,
using the straight-line method, over 5 years the estimated
useful lives of the software. 
(22) Net Income per Share
Net income per share of common stock is based upon 
the weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding during each year, appropriately adjusted for 
subsequent splits of common stock. 

Diluted net income per share is computed by dividing 
the net income available for distribution to shareholders by
the weighed average number of shares of common stock
outstanding during each year assuming full conversion of
convertible bonds and full execution of warrants.
(23) Accounting Standard for Impairment of Fixed Assets
On August 9, 2002, the Business Accounting Council in
Japan issued the “Accounting Standard for Impairment of
Fixed Assets.” The standard requires that fixed assets be
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an 
asset may not be recoverable. An impairment loss shall be
recognized in the income statement by reducing the carry-
ing amount of impaired assets or a group of assets to the
recoverable amount to be measured as the higher of net 
selling price and value in use.

The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning April 1,
2005.

The Company adopted this standard in the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2006. As a result, property, plant and
equipment decreased by ¥12 million ($102 thousand), and
income before income taxes and minority interests for the
year ended December 31, 2006 decreased by the same
amount, as compared with the amounts which would have
been reported if the previous standards had been applied
consistently.

The accumulated impairment loss is deducted from the
net book value of each asset.

(16) Reserve for Directors’ and Corporate Auditors’ 
Bonuses

Reserve for directors’ and corporate auditors’ bonuses is 
provided for based on the estimated amounts payable at 
the end of current fiscal year.
(Change in Accounting Policies)
(Fiscal year 2006)
The Company and domestic consolidated subsidiaries
adopted the Accounting Standard for Directors’ Bonuses
(Accounting Standards Board of Japan Statement No. 4
issued by the  Accounting Standards Board of Japan on
November 29, 2005) from the current fiscal year. The stan-
dard is to be applied for fiscal years ending on or after May 1,
2006, the date on which the Corporate Law takes effect.

As a result, selling, general and administrative expense
increased by ¥40 million ($340 thousand) and operating
income, ordinary income, and net income before income
taxes and minority interests decreased by the same amount,
compared to those accounted for based on the prior stan-
dard.
(17) Reserve for Retirement Benefits
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries each main-
tain a defined benefit pension plan and lump-sum severance
payment. Accrued retirement benefits are provided based on
the amount of the projected benefit obligation less the fair
value of the pension plan assets at the end of the fiscal year.

For certain employees, the Company makes premium
retirement payments that are not treated as retirement
benefit obligations under the new standards for retirement
benefit accounting.
(Additional Information)
(Fiscal year 2005)
As of August 1, 2005, the Company revised its retirement
benefits system by transferring from the ongoing lump-sum
severance system and the tax-qualified pension plan to an
agreement-type defined benefit corporate pension plan (cash
balance plan) formula, as well as introducing a point-based
retirement allowance system.

The Company has applied the “Accounting for Transfers
among Retirement Benefit Plans” accounting standard
(issue No. 1 of Application Guidelines in Accounting Stan-
dards for Business Enterprises). In accordance with this
accounting standard, changes in value of the retirement
benefit obligations have been recorded as prior service costs
while the amortization methods and periods applied in pre-
vious years have continued to be applied to unrecognized
actuarial differences accrued before the primary revision or
transfer.

Furthermore, the transfer has caused a decrease in the
retirement benefit obligation, generating profit of ¥863 mil-
lion in prior service costs. This profit has been amortized
using the straight-line method over five years from the revi-
sion date, which is within the average remaining service
period of employees. This contributed to the increase of ¥71
million in operating income and income before income
taxes during the consolidated fiscal year.
(18) Reserve for Losses on Geo-engineering Contracts
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries
provide a reserve for losses on geo-engineering contracts at
an amount sufficient to cover probable and determinable
future losses on the construction contracts outstanding at
the balance sheet date.
(19) Retirement Benefits for Directors and Corporate 

Auditors
In previous years the Company provided an allowance for
retirement benefits for directors and corporate auditors at an
amount to be paid at the end of the periods based on its reg-
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(2) Assets and Liabilities of OYO Geospace Corporation
(Fiscal year 2005)
The assets and liabilities of OYO Geospace Corporation,
which changed from a consolidated subsidiary to an affili-
ated company under the equity method due to the sale of
shares, are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents of ¥25 million at the time of
deconsolidation is deducted from the “Proceeds from sale of
subsidiaries’ shares, net of cash owned by that subsidiary.”
(3) Assets and Liabilities of OYO RMS Corporation and   

KCS Co. LTD
(Fiscal year 2006)
During the year the company purchased shares so that KCS
Co.LTD and its affiliated company, OYO RMS Corporation
became consolidated subsidiaries. The assets and liabilities
acquired were as follows;

5. Marketable Securities and Investments in Securities
“Other Securities” at December 31, 2005 and 2006 were as follows:

Cash in hand and at bank
Marketable securities

Time deposits with a term of   
over 3 months

Securities Investment Trust  
instruments with maturi-
ties of more than 3 months

Cash and cash equivalents

¥15,816
2,536

18,352

(1,202)

(224)
¥16,926

$132,771
21,293

154,064

(10,094)

(1,881)
$142,089

20062005 2006

(Millions of yen)
(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

¥16,522
2,812

19,334

(42)

—
¥19,292

Current assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Minority interests in consolidated 

subsidiaries
Investment in affiliates under the    

equity method
Acquisition costs of the securities of 

newly consolidated subsidiaries
Newly consolidated subsidiaries’ cash 

and cash equivalents
Difference: Cash flow arising from

acquisition of subsidiaries

¥1,005
181
245

(700)
1

(92)

(215)

425

694

269

$8,441
1,526
2,059

(5,874)
(4)

(770)

(1,806)

3,572

5,829

2,257

2006 2006

(Millions of
yen)

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

Current assets
Non-current assets

Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities

¥5,813
3,728
9,541

¥1,110
1,428
2,538

2005

(Millions of
yen)

(24) Change in Accounting Policy
Effective from the year ended December 31, 2006, the Com-
pany has applied “Accounting standards for presentation of
net assets in the balance sheet (Accounting Standards Board of
Japan Statement No. 5),” and “Implementation guidance for
Accounting standards for presentation of net assets in the bal-
ance sheet (Accounting Standards of Japan Guidance No. 8)”
both issued by the Accounting Standards Board of Japan on
December 9, 2005.

The amounts corresponding to the conventional “Share-
holders’ equity” in the balance sheet is ¥54,887 million.

“Net assets” in the balance sheets for this year are pre-
sented according to the revision of “Regulations Concerning
the Terminology, Form and Presentation Methods of 
Consolidated Financial Statements” dated on April 25, 2006.

3. U.S. Dollar Amounts
The dollar amounts included in the consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto represent the arithmetical
results of translating yen to dollars at the rate of ¥119.12=
U.S.$1, the approximate exchange rate at the latest balance
sheet date of December 31, 2006. The inclusion of such dollar
amounts is solely for convenience and is not intended to imply
that yen amounts have been or could be converted, realized or
settled in dollars at ¥119.12=U.S.$1 or at any other rate.  

4. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(1) Cash and Cash Equivalents
“Cash and cash equivalents” are reconciled to “Cash in hand
and at bank” as follows:

Market value available:
Stocks
Bonds – Government 

bonds and local 
government bonds

– Corporate bonds
– Other

Other

Market value not available:
Total

2005

Cost

Book value 
(estimated 
fair value)

Unrealized
gain/(loss)

¥1,229 

—
502

1,343 
1,251 

¥4,325

¥  2,747

—
487

1,315
1,395 
5,944
4,569

¥10,513

¥1,518

—
(15)
(28)
144

¥1,619

2006

(Millions of yen)

Cost

Book value 
(estimated 
fair value)

Unrealized
gain/(loss)

¥2,649

100 
600

1,447 
1,355

¥6,151

¥  3,908

100
596

1,383
1,479 
7,466
4,041

¥11,507

¥1,259

—
(4)

(64)
124

¥1,315

2006

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Cost

Book value 
(estimated 
fair value)

Unrealized
gain/(loss)

$22,234

840
5,040

12,150
11,375

$51,639

$32,812

840
5,001

11,607 
12,415
62,675
33,927

$96,602

$10,578

—
(39)

(543)
1,040

$11,036
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¥1,795 
192
319 

—
200
10

¥2,516

¥1,714
280

—
86

213
15

¥2,308

$14,390
2,351

—
723

1,786
126

$19,376

20062005 2006

(Millions of yen)
(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

Investment in
common stock

Investment in
common stock

Percentage of
ownership

20.0%
49.0

—
20.0
50.0

—

Investment in
common stock

Unconsolidated subsidiary and affiliates:
OYO Geospace Corporation
Iris Instruments SAS
OYO RMS Corporation
RMS Japan Corporation
Engineering & Risk Services Corporation
Others (including unconsolidated subsidiary)

The aggregate annual maturities of “Other Securities”
with maturity at December 31, 2005 and 2006 are as follows:

6. Inventories
Inventories as at December 31, 2005 and 2006 consisted of
the following:

7. Land Revaluation
Pursuant to the Law Concerning Revaluation of Land (Article
34 of the law publicly announced on March 31, 1998), land
used for business operations has been revalued. The gain/loss
on revaluation of land has been included in “Revaluation and
transaction adjustments” within “Net Assets,” net of income
taxes.

Methods of revaluation  
Standard land, as determined by Article 2.4 of the Enforce-
ment Ordinance for the Law Concerning Revaluation of
Land (Ministerial Ordinance 119, publicly announced on
March 31, 1998) has been revalued using the method used
for calculating inheritance tax (the “Rosenka” method).
Other land, as determined by Article 2.3 of the same ordi-
nance has been revalued using the assessed value for land
tax purposes, reflecting appropriate adjustments, detailed as
follows:  

Date of revaluation                    December 31, 2001 
Difference between year-end 

market price of revalued 
land and book value after 
revaluation                                (¥580) million ($4,875) thousand

As a result of the assessment of recover ability of deferred tax
assets on the land revaluation, they were decrease by ¥805 million
which reflected in “Deferred tax liabilities for revaluation of land”
balance at December 31, 2005.

Commercial paper
Money management funds
Equity securities
Other

¥   999
1,113
1,152

475
¥3,739

$  8,384
9,343
9,676
3,993

$31,396

20062005 2006

(Millions of yen)
(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

¥1,500
1,112
1,117

539
¥4,268

Within 1 year
1–5 years
5–10 years
Over 10 years

¥1,225
1,857

173
400

¥3,655

$10,284
15,587 
1,455 
3,358 

$30,684

20062005 2006

(Millions of yen)
(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

¥1,500
1,649

125
400

¥3,674

Finished products and       
merchandise

Work-in-process
Raw materials
Supplies

¥   707
475

1,319
42 

¥2,543

$  5,935
3,987

11,075
354

$21,351

20062005 2006

(Millions of yen)
(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

¥   779
275

1,108
38 

¥2,200

8. Investments in and Advances to Unconsolidated Subsidiary and Affiliates
Investments in and advances to unconsolidated subsidiary and affiliates at December 31, 2005 and 2006 were as follows:

The proceeds from sales of “Other Securities” for the years
ended December 31, 2005 and 2006 are ¥312 million and
¥203 million ($1,706 thousand), respectively. The gross 
realized profits and losses on those sales for the year ended
December 31, 2005 are 19 million and ¥13 million, respec-
tively, and those for the year ended December 31, 2006 are 
¥6 million ($53 thousand) and nil, respectively.

Impairment losses amounting to ¥33 million and ¥14 
million ($121 thousand) on “Other Securities” with market
quotations were recognized for the year ended December 31,
2005 and 2006, respectively.

The carrying amounts of “Other Securities” without 
market quotations at December 31, 2005 and 2006 are as 
follows:
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10. Income Taxes
Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities
as at December 31, 2005 and 2006 were as follows:

The following assets are pledged as collateral to secure
long-term debt, including the current portion thereof, at
December 31, 2005 and 2006:

Notes:(1)  

Long-term debt as at December 31, 2005 and 2006
consisted of loans from banks and other financial
institutions bearing interest at annual rates rang-
ing from 3.075% to 6.0% and from 3.8% to 6.0%,
respectively.

Annual maturities of long-term debt are as
follows:

(2) 

9. Short-term and Long-term Debt
Loan details

¥120
13
30

¥163

—
—

2005 – 2013
— —

2005

(Millions of yen)

NotesMaturity
Average 

interest rate

1.88
3.98
4.23

—

Closing 
balance 

Short-term debt
Current portion of long-term debt
Long-term debt repayable after one year or more

Total

¥226
60

688
¥974

Opening 
balance 

December 31

$1,469
88

157
$1,714

—
—

2008 – 2013
— —

2006

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

NotesMaturity
Average 

interest rate

1.80
4.16
4.28

—

Closing 
balance

Short-term debt
Current portion of long-term debt
Long-term debt repayable after one year or more

Total

$1,007
111
249

$1,367

Opening  
balance

December 31

¥175
10
19

¥204

—
—

2008 – 2013
— —

2006

(Millions of yen)

NotesMaturity
Average 

interest rate

1.80
4.16
4.28

—

Closing 
balance 

Short-term debt
Current portion of long-term debt
Long-term debt repayable after one year or more

Total

¥120 
13
30

¥163

Opening 
balance 

December 31

Year ended 
December 31, 2006

¥10
7
1
1

$88
61
3
2

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

(Millions of
yen)

2008
2009
2010
2011

Land
Buildings

Secured long-term debt:
Long-term loans
(including  current portion 

of long-term loans)

¥  86
173
259

26

10

2006 2006

(Millions of yen)
(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

2005

$   722
1,452
2,174

225

83

¥173
89

262

36

10

¥  413

1,410

1
132
60

73
1,502

308 
3,899

(2,007)
1,892

336
707
805

1,848
¥    44

Deferred tax assets
Losses carried forward
Provision for retirement  

benefits in excess of 
statutory limit

Disallowed loss on valuation     
of securities

Enterprise taxes  
Reserve for accrued bonuses
Loss on write-down of 

inventories
Loss on land revaluation
Other
Total gross deferred tax assets

Less valuation allowance
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities 
Adjustment on revaluation of  

fixed assets
Gain on land revaluation
Other

Deferred tax liabilities 
Net deferred tax assets

$ 3,467

11,839

14
1,112

500

610
12,601 
2,591

32,734
(16,852)
15,882

2,821
5,935
6,760 

15,516 
$     366 

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)(Millions of yen)

¥  142

1,446

2 
79

104

62
806
314 

2,955
(1,008)
1,947 

323
712
873 

1,908
¥    39

2005 20062006
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Note: Consolidated subsidiaries using the simplified calcula-
tion state all retirement benefit costs as “Service 
Costs.”

1. Service costs
2. Interest expense 
3. Expected earnings 
4. Prior service costs
5. Actuarial differential
6. Costs incurred due to

transition
7. Payment amount of 

advance retirement 
benefits

8. Installment payment to 
defined contribution 
pension

9. Net retirement benefit 
costs

[(1) + (2) + (3) + (4) + (5)+ 
(6) + (7) + (8)]

$2,774
1,023
(587)

(1,773)
1,523

—

146

386

$3,492

(Millions of yen) 
(Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

2006

¥331
121
(69)

(211)
181

—

17

46

¥416 

20062005

¥359
129
(32)

(110)
149

12

16

44

¥567 

1. Discount rate 

2. Expected return on 
plan assets 

3. Method for 
periodically 
appropriating 
retirement benefits 

4. Amortization period 
for prior service 
costs

5. Amortization period 
for net obligation 
at transition 

6. Amortization period 
for unrecognized 
actuarial differences

Parent company:
2.0%; 

Consolidated sub-
sidiaries: 2.5%

2.50%
Period fixed-amount

basis

5 years
Parent company: 

1 year;
Consolidated sub-

sidiaries: 
5 years

5 years from the year
following that in
which they arise

As of December 31,
2006

Parent company:
2.0%; 

Consolidated sub-
sidiaries: 2.5%

1.50%
Period fixed-amount

basis

5 years
Parent company: 

1 year;
Consolidated sub-

sidiaries: 
5 years

5 years from the year
following that in
which they arise

As of December 31,
2005

11. Reserve for Retirement Benefits
(1) The Reserves for Retirement Benefit Obligations as of   

December 31, 2005 and 2006 Were as Follows:

(2) The Net Retirement Benefit Costs for the Years Ended  
December 31, 2005 and 2006 Were as Follows:

The amount that has not been transferred as of the end 
of the current fiscal year is recorded as ¥20 million ($171
thousand, 2005: ¥20 million) in other current liabilities and
¥81 million ($ 687 thousand, 2005: ¥104 million) in other
long-term liabilities.

Statutory tax rate of corporation tax
Adjustments
Entertainment and other perma-

nently disallowable expenses
Dividend income receivable and 

other permanently excluded items
Local inhabitant tax allocation
Losses in respect of subsidiaries not 

subject to deferred tax accounting
Investment losses arising from 

equity method consolidation
Impairment of goodwill
Valuation allowance
Difference in tax rates applicable to

overseas subsidiaries
Other
Effective income tax rate

40.7%

0.6

(5.6)
4.6

3.1

(3.3)
—

0.7

1.5
1.7

44.0

40.7%

0.6

(1.1)
6.1

1.6

(2.0)
6.4
0.3

3.8
(4.9)

51.5

2005 2006

Note: Certain consolidated subsidiaries used a simplified  
method for calculating retirement benefit obligations.

1. Projected benefit 
obligation

2. Fair value of plan assets
3. Projected benefit 

obligation in excess of 
plan assets [(1) + (2)] 

4. Unrecognized actuarial  
difference 

5. Unrecognized prior 
service costs

6. Net liability recognized 
in the balance sheets
[(3)+ (4)+ (5)]   

7. Prepaid pension costs
8. Liability for employees’ 

retirement benefits
[(6) – (7)] 

$(52,567)
28,390 

(24,177)

1,288

(5,843)

(28,732)
936

$(29,668)

(Millions of yen) 
(Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

2006

¥(6,262)
3,382

(2,880)

153

(696)

(3,423)
111 

¥(3,534)

20062005

¥(6,068)
2,877

(3,191)

414 

(907)

(3,684)
43 

¥(3,727)

(3) The Assumptions Used in the Calculation of Retirement 
Benefit Obligations Are as Follows:

Differences between the statutory tax rate and the effective
income tax rate under deferred tax accounting are reconciled
as follows: 
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15. Lease Transactions
(1) Finance Lease Contracts without Ownership Transfer
Finance leases, other than those which are deemed to trans-
fer the ownership of the leased assets to the leases at the
end of the lease term, are accounted for using a method
similar to that applicable to ordinary operating leases. Had
such leases been capitalized, the following items would
have been recognized on the consolidated balance sheets as
at December 31, 2005 and 2006:

14. Research and Development Costs
The amounts charged to income for the company’s research
and development activities for the years ended December
31, 2005 and 2006 were ¥1,289 million and ¥975 million
($8,186 thousand), respectively.

12. Stock Option Plans

13. Supplementary Profit and Loss Information
Significant components of selling, general and administra-
tion expenses for the years ended December 31, 2005 and
2006 were as follows:

Acquisition Cost Equivalent
Machinery and equipment
Tools and fixtures

Cumulative Depreciation 
Equivalent
Machinery and equipment
Tools and fixtures

Net Book Value Equivalent
Machinery and equipment
Tools and fixtures

Future Lease Payments
Within one year
Over one year

¥ 268
745

¥1,013

¥ 195
384

¥ 579

¥ 73
361

¥ 434

¥ 181
253

¥ 434

$1,512
6,342

$7,854

$1,199
2,917

$4,116

$ 313
3,425

$3,738

$1,563
2,175

$3,738

2005

(Millions of yen)
(Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

2006

¥180
755

¥935

¥143
347

¥490

¥ 37
408

¥445

¥186
259

¥445

2006

Lease rental expense on finance lease contracts without
ownership transfer during the years ended December 31,
2005 and 2006 amounted to ¥251 million and ¥207 million
($1,738 thousand), respectively.

(2) Operating Leases
The amounts of outstanding future lease payments as at
December 31, 2005 and 2006, which included the portion of
interest thereon, are as follows:

Future Lease Payments
Within one year
Over one year

¥  46
248

¥294

$   744
3,053

$3,797

2005

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

2006

¥  89
363

¥452

2006

(Millions of yen)

Qualified beneficiaries

Type and maximum  
number of shares of 
common stock for 
which new subscrip-
tion rights offered

Date rights granted
Period of exercise of 
rights

Exercise price (yen)
Number of options 
settled
December 31, 2005
Exercised
Lapsed
December 31, 2006

Average price of 
common stock at 
exercise date (yen)

10 directors
1,152 employees
17 directors of 

subsidiaries

Common stock
1,284,400

October 17, 2003
From April 1, 2005 to

March 31, 2010
834

885,900
330,900

8,000
547,000

1,474

(2) Plan approved on
March 27, 2003

5 directors
305 employees

Common stock
500,000

May 24, 2000
From April 1, 2002 to

March 30, 2007
1,401

328,500
16,500
10,000

302,000

1,513

(1) Plan approved on
March 29, 2000

Director’s Compensation
Salary allowance
Statutory benefits
Transferred reserve for 
bonuses

Retirement benefit costs
Transferred reserve for 
directors’ retirement benefits

Travel expenses
Rent
Research and development 
costs

Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of goodwill 
Provision for doubtful 
receivables

Others

$  4,953 
34,632 
5,485 

987 
1,456 

—
4,841 
4,739 

8,186 
2,238 

72 

500 
24,365 

$92,454

(Millions of yen) 
(Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

2006

¥     590 
4,125 

653 

118 
173 

—
577 
564 

975 
267 

9 

60 
2,902 

¥11,013

20062005

¥     557 
4,473 

625 

85 
240 

17 
559 
580 

1,289 
417 

—

55 
3,759 

¥12,656
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16. Related Party Transactions
The Company’s sales to and purchases from directors and major shareholders of the reporting company and relationship to the
company for the years ended, December 31, 2005 and 2006 were as follows:

(1) Major 
shareholder of 
the company

(2) A company whose 
majority shares are held 
by a major shareholder 
of the company or their     
close relatives

Name Address

Capital 
(including

investments 
in capital)

Business 
lines / 

occupation
Voting
rights Personnel Business

Relationship

Description

Atsuo 
Fukada

Houkoku    
Kogyo, 
Co., Ltd.

Koganei-city,
Tokyo

Yodogawa-ku,   
Osaka-city, 
Osaka

—

¥10

Corporate   
adviser of the   
company

Rental of real  
estate

10.29%

0.01%

—

—

Corporate   
adviser of the   
company

Rental of real  
estate

Transaction

Salary for services as 
corporate adviser

Rent for building and  
parking lot

Transaction
amount

¥2

¥92

Accounting
title

—

Deposit

Term-
end balance

—

¥85

Name

Atsuo 
Fukada

Houkoku   
Kogyo, 
Co., Ltd.

For the year ended, December 31, 2005                                                                                                                                           (Millions of yen (¥))

Notes: (1) Houkoku Kogyo, Co., Ltd. is wholly-owned by Atsuo Fukada and his close relatives.
(2) This salary for services as corporate adviser is determined in line with other corporate advisers.
(3) Rent for buildings and parking lots is determined in line with other similar transactions.

(1) Major 
shareholder of 
the company

(2) A company whose 
majority shares are held 
by a major shareholder 
of the company or their     
close relatives

Name Address

Capital 
(including

investments 
in capital)

Business 
lines / 

occupation
Voting
rights Personnel Business

Relationship

Description

Atsuo 
Fukada

Houkoku    
Kogyo, 
Co., Ltd.

Koganei-city,
Tokyo

Yodogawa-ku,   
Osaka-city, 
Osaka

—

¥10
($83)

Corporate   
adviser of the   
company

Rental of real  
estate

10.41%

0.01%

—

—

Corporate   
adviser of the   
company

Rental of real  
estate

Transaction

Salary for services as 
corporate adviser

Rent for building and  
parking lot

Transaction
amount

¥2
($15)

¥92
($774)

Accounting
title

—

Deposit

Term-
end balance

—

¥85
($715)

Name

Atsuo 
Fukada

Houkoku   
Kogyo, 
Co., Ltd.

For the year ended, December 31, 2006                                                                                               (Millions of yen (¥), Thousands of U.S. dollars ($))
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Corporate/
(Elimination) Total

Measuring
instruments

Geo-engineering
services

¥29,519
—

29,519
29,018

¥     501

¥30,752
¥     692
¥     234

¥13,825
891

14,716
14,022

¥     694

¥10,532
¥ 503
¥ 431

¥43,344
891

44,235
43,040

¥  1,195

¥41,284
¥  1,195
¥     665

¥ —
(891)
(891)
(886)

¥ (5)

¥24,575
¥ 10
¥ 534

Net Sales and Operating Income
(1) Sales to outside customers
(2) Inter-segment transactions

Total
Operating expenses
Operating income

Assets, Depreciation, and Capital Expenditure
Total assets
Depreciation expenses
Capital expenditure

(Millions of yen)

2005

Consolidated
total 

¥43,344
—

43,344
42,154

¥  1,190

¥65,859
¥  1,205
¥  1,199
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Included in the “Corporate/(Elimination)”  column are common assets of ¥24,849 million and ¥24,029 million ($201,720 thousand) as
at December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively, which mainly comprise surplus working funds (cash and marketable securities), long-
term investment funds (investments in securities), and other assets which belong to the Group.
“Depreciation expense” and “Capital expenditure” include long-term prepaid expenses and the related amortization.
Effective from the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries adopted the Accounting
Standard for Directors’ Bonuses (Accounting Standards Board of Japan Statement No. 4 issued by Accounting Standards Board of Japan
on November 29, 2005). As a result, operating income decreased by ¥39 million ($332 thousand) for “Geo-engineering services,” and 
¥1 million ($8 thousand) for “Measuring instruments,” compared with what would have been reported using the previous method.

Notes: (1)

(2)
(3)

2006

Corporate/
(Elimination) Total

Measuring
instruments

Geo-engineering
services

$259,384
—

259,384
249,927

$    9,457

$271,633
$ 4,859
$ 102
$   3,001

$  71,636
6,978

78,614
74,147

$    4,467

$101,089
$    1,642
$ —
$    1,879

$331,020
6,978

337,998
324,074

$ 13,924

$372,722
$ 6,501
$ 102
$ 4,880

$          —
(6,978)
(6,978)
(7,375)

$  397

$199,751
$ 135
$ —
$ (115)

Net Sales and Operating Income
(1) Sales to outside customers
(2) Inter-segment transactions

Total
Operating expenses
Operating income 

Assets, Depreciation, Impairment Loss on Fixed 
Assets and Capital Expenditure

Total assets
Depreciation expenses
Impairment loss on fixed assets

Capital expenditure

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Consolidated
total

$331,020
—

331,020
316,699

$  14,321

$572,473
$    6,636
$ 102
$    4,765

(Millions of yen)

Consolidated
total

Corporate/
(Elimination) Total

Measuring
instruments

Geo-engineering
services

¥30,898
—

30,898
29,771

¥  1,127

¥32,357
¥     579
¥       12
¥     357

¥  8,533
831

9,364
8,832

¥     532

¥12,041
¥ 195
¥ —
¥ 224

¥39,431
831

40,262
38,603

¥  1,659

¥44,398
¥     774
¥       12
¥     581

¥ —
(831)
(831)
(878)

¥ 47

¥23,795
¥ 16
¥ —
¥ (14)

¥39,431
—

39,431
37,725

¥  1,706

¥68,193
¥     790
¥       12
¥     567

2006

Net Sales and Operating Income
(1) Sales to outside customers
(2) Inter-segment transactions

Total
Operating expenses
Operating income

Assets, Depreciation, Impairment Loss on Fixed 
Assets and Capital Expenditure

Total assets
Depreciation expenses
Impairment loss on fixed assets
Capital expenditure

17. Segmental Information
(1) Segmental Information by Type of Business
The Companies operate principally in the following two areas of business:

Geo-engineering services......Geo-engineering, planning, construction, environmental research, environmental 
assessment, etc.

Measuring instruments.........Measuring instruments for Geo-engineering, oil search, sound wave searching, 
underground radar, and earthquake observation, etc.
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Note: “Overseas sales” consist of exports from the parent company and sales of consolidated subsidiaries outside Japan (but excludes 
transactions between consolidated subsidiaries).

Consolidated 
totalElimination Total

North
AmericaJapan

¥32,314
46

32,360
31,130

¥  1,230

¥33,757

¥  6,100
134

6,234
5,766

¥   468

¥  9,579

¥39,431
218

39,649
37,942

¥  1,707

¥44,234

¥ —
(218)
(218)
(217)

¥ (1)

¥23,959

¥39,431
—

39,431
37,725

¥  1,706

¥68,193

Net Sales and Operating Income
(1) Sales to outside customers
(2) Inter-segment sales

Total
Operating expenses
Operating income

Assets
Total assets

(Millions of yen)

2006

Other areas

¥1,017
38

1,055
1,046

¥ 9

¥ 898

$271,271
392

271,663
261,336

$ 10,327

$283,387

$51,211
1,125

52,336
48,407

$ 3,929

$80,417

$331,020
1,837

332,857
318,526

$  14,331

$371,345

$          —
(1,837)
(1,837)
(1,827)

$  (10)

$201,128

$331,020
—

331,020
316,699

$ 14,321

$572,473

Net Sales and Operating Income
(1) Sales to outside customers
(2) Inter-segment sales

Total
Operating expenses
Operating income

Assets
Total assets

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

2006

$8,538
320

8,858
8,783

$ 75

$7,541

Consolidated 
totalElimination Total

North
AmericaJapan Other areas

Included in the “Elimination” column are common assets of ¥24,849 million and ¥24,029 million ($201,720 thousand) as at December
31, 2005 and 2006, respectively, which mainly comprise surplus working funds (cash and marketable securities), long-term investment
funds (investment in securities), and other assets which belong to the Group.
Effective from the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries adopted the Accounting
Standard for Directors’ Bonuses (Accounting Standards Board of Japan Statement No. 4 issued by Accounting Standards Board of Japan
on November 29, 2005). As a result, operating income decreased by ¥40 million ($340 thousand) for “Japan” compared with what
would have been reported using the previous method.

Notes: (1)

(2)

Overseas sales
North America
Other areas

Consolidated net sales

Overseas sales/Consolidated net sales
North America
Other areas

¥  7,276
2,434
4,842

¥39,431

18.5%
6.2%

12.3%

¥12,810
6,648
6,162

¥43,344

29.6%
15.3%
14.2%

$  61,085
20,439
40,646

$331,020

18.5%
6.2%

12.3%

20062005 2006
(Millions of yen)

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

Consolidated 
totalElimination Total

North
AmericaJapan

¥30,666
51

30,717
29,792

¥     925

¥32,047

¥10,976
148

11,124
11,042

¥  82

¥  8,507

¥43,344
212

43,556
42,387

¥  1,169

¥41,082

¥ —
(212)
(212)
(233)

¥ 21

¥24,777

¥43,344
—

43,344
42,154

¥  1,190

¥65,859

Net Sales and Operating Income
(1) Sales to outside customers
(2) Inter-segment sales

Total
Operating expenses
Operating income 

Assets
Total assets

(Millions of yen)

2005

Other areas

¥1,702
13

1,715
1,553

¥ 162

¥ 528

(3) Overseas Sales

(2) Segmental Information by Geographical Region
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Notes: (1) Market values 
Currency swap transactions: Market values are based on prices submitted by the financial institutions involved in the transactions.               

(2) Currency option transactions include offset transactions (both buy and sell) that meet certain market conditions for spot exchange rates.

Currency-related

¥     —

¥     —

¥    1

¥    1

¥   1

¥   1

Type of Transaction

Non-market 
transactions 

Total

(Millions of yen)

2005

¥  857

¥  857

Unrealized
gain/(loss)Market value

Portion
exceeding

1 year
Contract 
amount

December 31

the finance and accounting department executes and 
manages the Company’s derivative contracts, subject to
internal rules governing transaction authority and 
transaction limits.

Supplementary information:
With respect to the market values of derivative transac-
tions, the contract amount of each transaction is either a
nominal contract amount or a notional principal amount
and, therefore, does not accurately reflect the size of the
risk involved in the transaction.

18. Derivatives 
The Company enters into currency swap agreements as
hedging instruments. These agreements are designed to
hedge and minimize the Company’s exposures to foreign
currency exchange rate fluctuations upon its receivables and
its policy does not allow the holding or issue of any deriva-
tive financial instruments for trading or speculation pur-
poses.  The Company’s management believes that there is
no credit risk associated with these currency swaps since
they are executed with creditworthy financial institutions.

With the approval of the Company’s senior management,

Currency swaps 
Receive fixed (U.S.$) 
Pay fixed (¥)

¥  516

¥  516

¥    (1)

¥    (1)

¥   (1)

¥   (1)

Type of Transaction

Non-market 
transactions 

Total

(Millions of yen)

2006

¥  688

¥  688

Unrealized
gain/(loss)Market value

Portion
exceeding

1 year
Contract 
amount

December 31

Currency swaps 
Receive fixed (U.S.$) 
Pay fixed (¥)

$  4,334

$  4,334

$  (10)

$  (10)

$  (10)

$  (10)

Type of Transaction

Non-market 
transactions 

Total

(Thousands of U.S.dollars)

2006

$  5,779

$  5,779

Unrealized
gain/(loss)Market value

Portion
exceeding

1 year
Contract 
amount

December 31

Currency swaps 
Receive fixed (U.S.$) 
Pay fixed (¥)

Cash dividends
(¥10 per share) ¥290 $2,441

(Millions of
yen)

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

19. Subsequent Events 
Appropriations of retained earnings of the Company in
respect of the year ended December 31, 2006 proposed by
the Board of Directors and approved at the shareholders’
meeting of the Company held on March 28, 2007 are as 
follows:
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of OYO Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of OYO Corporation and its subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2005 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash
flows for the years then ended, all expressed in Japanese Yen. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall con-
solidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of OYO Corporation and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2006, and the
consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with account-
ing principles generally accepted in Japan.

As described in Note 2(16), effective for the year ended December 31, 2006, OYO Corporation and its domestic 
subsidiaries adopted the new accounting standard for directors’ bonuses.

As described in Note 2(23), effective the year ended December 31, 2006, OYO Corporation and its subsidiaries
adopted the new accounting standard for impairment of fixed assets.

The amounts expressed in U.S. dollars, which are provided solely for the convenience of the reader, have been
translated on the basis set forth in Note 3 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Misuzu Audit Corporation
Tokyo, Japan
March 28, 2007
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Share Overview (as of December 31, 2006)

Number of Authorized Shares
120,000,000 shares 

Number of Shares Issued
32,082,573 shares
(of which, Treasury Stock: 3,005,282 shares)

Shares per Trading Unit
100 shares

Number of Shareholders
9,256
(excluding shareholders who only hold shares
less than one unit)

Principal Shareholders

Trade name

Atsuo Fukada
FUKADA GEOLOGICAL INSTITUTE
OYO Corporation Employee Shareholders Association
Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.
Goldman Sachs International
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (trust units)
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (trust units)
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
Tama Suyama
Nippon Life Insurance Company

Number of the
Company’s shares held

(thousand shares)

3,012
2,948
1,294
1,000

723
704
654
650
576
527

Shareholding
ratio 
(%)

9.39
9.19
4.04
3.12
2.26
2.20
2.04
2.03
1.80
1.64

Financial institutions

Securities firms

Other corporations

Foreign corporations, etc.

Individuals, other

Treasury stocks

9.37%

45.17%

9.66%

17.96%

1.29%

16.56%

Breakdown of Shareholders
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Board of Directors, Officers and
Corporate Auditors (as of April 1, 2007)

Chairman & CEO 
Moriyuki Taya*

President & COO 
Kiyoshi Mamiya*

Deputy President & CFO
Naobumi Daibo*

Deputy President
Masaru Narita

Director and Senior Executive Officers
Katsuhiko Kobayashi
Tsuneaki Iwasaki
Keiji Tonouchi
Keiichi Hirata

Director
Takashi Kanemori

Full-time Corporate Auditor
Yuhei Kono
Tateo Suzuki

Corporate Auditors 
Kazuo Shinozawa
Syunji Saito

Senior Executive Officers
Kazuhiko Sasaki
Koji Kawamoto
Keizo kono

Executive Officers
Masayoshi Shibuki
Kenji Yoshinaga 
Akihiko Nakagami 
Takeichiro Ohhashi 
Yoshinori Sone 
Tadashi Yoshioka 
Kanji Baba
Jun Shigenobu
Fumihiro Doumoto
Mitsuhiro Nanbu
Kenji Sato 

*Representative Director

Name
OYO CORPORATION

Incorporated
May 2, 1957

Paid-in Capital
¥16,174,600 thousand (U.S.$136,968 thousand)

Number of Employees
1,959 (consolidated)
1,059 (non-consolidated) 
(as of December 31, 2006)

Number of Sales Offices
59 (as of April 1, 2007)

Listing
The Tokyo Stock Exchange (First Section) 

Code Number
9755

Financial Year
January 1 to December 31

Annual Shareholders’ Meeting
March

Transfer Agent
Tokyo Securities Transfer Agent Co. Ltd.
4-2, Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, 
Tokyo 100-0005
Tel: 03-3212-4611

Auditor 
Misuzu Audit Corporation
2-5, Kasumigaseki 3-chome, Chiyoda-ku, 
Tokyo 100-6088
Tel: 03-5532-2100



Gratitude

 F o r  5 0 t h  y e a r  o f  
your support to OYO

Head Office
2-6 Kudan-kita 4-chome, 
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 102-0073, Japan
Tel: +81-3-3234-0811
Fax: +81-3-3263-6854
www.oyo.co.jp
E-mail: prosight@oyonet.oyo.co.jp

[Subsidiaries]

OYO Resources Management 
Corporation 
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, Japan
(Sale of software & hardware products
for geological & environmental inves-
tigation, temporary personnel agency,
nonlife insurance agency)
www.oyorm.co.jp

Tohoku Boring Co., Ltd
Sendai, Miyagi, Japan
(Geological investigation, landslip 
prevention and well drilling)
www.tbor.co.jp

NS Environmental Science 
Consultant Corporation
Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan 
(Environmental surveys and 
environmental assessment)
www.ns–kankyo.co.jp

Ocean Engineering Corporation
Saitama, Saitama, Japan 
(Marine surveying and investigation)
www1.odn.ne.jp/ocean_eng
E-mail: ocean-eng@pop17.odn.ne.jp

KOEI Consultant Co., Ltd
Bunkyo-ku, Tokyo, Japan
(Civil engineering services related
design,surveying and investigation 
and project management)
www.koei–ds.co.jp

OYO Seismic Instrumentation 
Corporation
Saitama, Saitama, Japan 
(Sale of seismometers) and seismologi-
cal instrumentation services
www.oyosi.co.jp

OYO International Corporation
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, Japan 
(Geotechnical, environmental and 
disaster prevention engineering 
services)
E-mail: oic@oyointer.com
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OYO Geo-monitoring Service 
Corporation
Kawaguchi, Saitama, Japan 
(Geo-monitoring service and instru-
ments rental)
www.oyoks.co.jp

Nankyu Geo Technics 
Corporation
Kagoshima, Kagoshima, Japan
(Geological investigation and 
geophysical services)
www.nan9.co.jp

OYO RMS Corporation
Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan  
(Damage risk evaluation and risk
management for earthquake and
typhoon disasters)
www.oyorms.co.jp
E-mail: oyorms@oyorms.co.jp

KCS Co. Ltd
Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo, Japan
(Road planning, transportation
analysis, regional planning, environ-
mental evaluation, and ecosystem
survey)
www.kcsweb.co.jp

[Overseas Subsidiaries]

OYO Corporation U.S.A.
Pasadena,California, U.S.A.
(Holding company of US & UK 
operating subsidiaries)

Kinemetrics, Inc.
Pasadena,California, U.S.A.
(Manufacturing and sale of seismome-
ters, strong motion seismometers and
seismic observation systems)
www.kinemetrics.com
E-mail: sales@kmi.com

Geometrics, Inc.
San Jose, California, U.S.A.
(Manufacturing and sale of 
geophysical instruments)
www.geometrics.com
E-mail: sales@mail.geometrics.com

Geophysical Survey Systems, Inc.
North Salem, New Hampshire, U.S.A.
(Manufacturing and sale of ground
penetrating radar systems)
www.geophysical.com
E-mail: sales@geophysical.com

Robertson Geologging Limited
Deganwy, Conwy, U.K.
(Manufacturing and sale of slimhole
logging systems)
www.geologging.com
E-mail: sales@geologging.com

[Affiliates]

Engineering & Risk Services 
Corporation
Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan  
(Natural disaster engineering and
risk analyzing services and environ-
mental site assessment)
www.ers-co.co.jp
E-mail: webmaster@ers–co.co.jp

RMS Japan Corporation
Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan  
(Natural disaster risk analysis and
advisory services (insurance market))
Japan.rms.com

[Overseas Affiliates]

IRIS Instruments SAS
Orleans, France
(Manufacturing and sale of 
geophysical instruments)
www.iris-instruments.com
E-mail: info@iris-instruments.com

OYO Geospace Corporation
Houston, Texas, U.S.A.
(Holding company of the oil explo-
ration instruments subsidiaries)
www.oyogeospace.com

OYO’s Subsidiaries and Affiliates

*

*

*

*

*

*

* Japanese only

*

*

*
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